ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 29, 2013
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harriet Drunmond

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

Sue Hull - Fairbanks
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Frances Roberts - Homer
Eric Fry - Juneau, Al aska
Martin Laster - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Goria ONeill - Anchorage
Dal e Anderson - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1-

March 29, 2013



W TNESS REG STER

SUE HULL, Appointee

Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the Alaska State
Board of Education & Early Devel opnent.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
confirmation hearings for the Professional Teaching Practices
Conmi ssi on.

FRANCES ROBERTS, Appoi ntee

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmi ssion

Honer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion.

ERI C FRY, Appointee

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion.

GLORI A O NEI LL, Appointee

University of Al aska Board of Regents

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

DALE ANDERSQN, Appoi nt ee

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

MARTI N LASTER, Appoi nt ee

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2013



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:06: 35 AM

CHAI R LYNN GATTIS called the House Education Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Gattis, Reinbold,
Seaton, P. WIlson, Saddler, Drummond, and LeDoux were present at
the call to order.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :
Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

8:06: 57 AM

CHAI R GATTIS announced that the only order of business would be
confirmation hearings for the various boards and commi ssions.
Attention was first turned to the Alaska State Board of
Education & Early Devel opnent.

8:07:43 AM

SUE HULL, Appointee, Al aska State Board of Education & Early
Devel opnent, announced that she was currently serving on the
Fai r banks School Board and had been involved with education for
nore than 30 years. She stated that she had served on the
Al aska State Board of Education & Early Developnent in the
1980s, and had served as the President of the Alaska PTA as
well as on the national PTA board. She reported that she had
also been the Chair for the developnent of the national
standards for parent and fam |y invol venent.

8:08: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND asked if she had previously served on
the Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent.

MS. HULL replied that she had served from 1982 - 1987.
8:09:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked why Ms. Hull would like to serve
on the board.

IVB. HULL replied that she wanted to pronote a closer
rel ati onship between the school districts and the Departnent of

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2013



Education and Early Devel opnent (EED). She referred to earlier
pil ot prograns which had not considered |ocal communities in the
pl anni ng process.

8:10:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for her perspective on the
statew de public school system and to include commentary on its
standout features and its opportunities for inprovenent.

M5. HULL offered her belief that there were many extraordinary
teachers, schools, and admi nistrators statew de. She noted that
al though scores were inproving across the state, there were
still chal | enges. She expressed interest for enhancing
graduation rates and student achievenent. She pointed out that
there was national interest for nmaking schools better.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what role Ms. Hull would take, and
the state would take, to address the challenges of |[|ow
achi evenent and | ow graduation rates.

M5. HULL replied that, as a board nenber, her job was "to ask
the right questions, to speak up on behalf of kids, to talk
about how the policies that the state sets really inpact kids in
the schools.” She conpared the school system to any bureaucracy
with inertia. She opined that the public election of school
boards allowed input for inprovenment from nenbers from outside
t hat system

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the current public schoo
system only needed nore funding and resources, or if there was a
need for system c changes.

M5. HULL responded that any organi zation, including schools, was
not healthy if it remained static. She stated that it would
require a focus on continuous inprovenent. She decl ared her
support of options in schools, while in a search for excell ence.

8:15: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the comon core standards
adopted by many of the larger school districts in Alaska, and
noted that the state had adopted Al askan specific standards.
Directing attention to the state's wuse of comopn core
assessnents for progress, he questioned whether there was any
di sconnect for the use of an assessnment to a standard which had
not been adopted statew de.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2013



M5. HULL declared that the new assessnents would be a challenge
for all wusers. She offered her belief that it should not be a
problem as the Al aska standards were conparable to the common
core standards and aligned well enough to provide assessnent.
She opined that the assessnments wuld drive change, as
nationw de testing had reflected a significant drop in
proficiency. She declared that it was "an act of courage to
tell people where students are actually performng in terns of
world class standards and then go to work at raising those
scores."” She expressed her support for the assessnents.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that his concern was that the
assessnments were not based on the standards being taught, should
a conparison be nade to other states where the assessnent was

based on the standard being taught. He noted that the
assessnent included the testing for integration of conplex ideas
versus testing for the know edge of specific facts. He asked

how the Alaska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent
would view a change of teaching nethodology toward the
i ntegration of conplex ideas.

M5. HULL replied that instruction had to change, and she
expressed her desire for school districts to discuss the shift
of instruction toward the common core. She detailed one
challenge to be for the existing text books, as they were not
aligned with the comon core. She opined that instructors were
aware of the challenges and had begun to review change. She
di scouraged the idea of sheltering staff from change, as
everyone would need to "step up" to the new accountability
nmeasur es.

8:19: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of Sue
Hull to the Alaska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent
for consideration in joint session by the House and Senate.
There being no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S reni nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnments to boards and comrmissions in no way reflect
i ndi vidual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,
and that the nomnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egislature for confirmation or rejection.

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comr ssi on

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2013



8:21:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND requested a brief update on the
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssion and any requiremnments
for the nom nees.

8:22: 02 AM

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Education and Early Devel opment (EED), expl ained
that the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion was housed
in EED and its role was for the investigation and enforcenent of
the professional teacher ethics rules. He noted that the
qualifications of each nom nee were determ ned by the governor's
office, and that the comm ssion was conprised of educators,
i ncl udi ng hi gher education, as well as an EED representative.

8:23:43 AM

FRANCES ROBERTS, Appointee, Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, reported that she had been a mathemati cs hi gh school
teacher for 19 years, and that she had a Master's Degree in
mat hemat i cs. She said that she was very interested in
education, comunity and <civic involvenent, and teachers’
rights. She expressed her long terminterest in serving on the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Conmm ssi on.

8:25: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there were any professional
teaching practices that were required of the new generation of

teachers, but had not been required in the past.

MS. ROBERTS responded, "None that |'maware of."

8:25:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of
Frances Roberts to the Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices
Comm ssion for consideration in joint session by the House and
Senat e. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S rem nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnents to boards and commssions in no way reflect
i ndi vi dual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2013



and that the nonmnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egi sl ature for confirmation or rejection.

8:26:48 AM

ERI C FRY, Appointee, Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion,
reported that he worked for EED.

8:27: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMVOND expr essed her concern for a non-educat or
representative on t he Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices
Conmi ssi on.

8:27:55 AM

MR. FRY explained that the comm ssion pertained to the rules of
ethics, not to conpetency as an educator.

8:28:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated his support for the nom nee,
noting that the applicant's resume was well rounded and
qualified to be a representative on the conmm ssion.

8:29:02 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON clarified that M. Fry was currently
serving on the commission, and she asked for exanples of the
cases brought to the conm ssion.

MR. FRY replied that about 20 cases annually resulted in final
orders, wth about half related to early departure from
contracts by teachers. He noted that many cases also resulted
from teacher disputes with other teachers, as the ethics rules
dictated that teachers would not disparage one another. He
stated that a very small nunber of cases resulted from the
m suse of school equi pnent, specifically conputers or i-pads.

8:29: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND, confirmng that M. Fry was currently
serving on the commssion, inquired as to the length of terns

and termlimts.

MR. FRY replied that each termwas for three years, with no nore
than two consecutive terns.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2013



8:30: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX offered her belief that it was appropriate
for a person outside of the profession to have a seat on the
commi ssi on.

8:31: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there were any general trends of
probl ens bei ng brought to the comm ssion for consideration.

MR. FRY explained that the problens tended to revolve around
teachers breaking contractual agreenents and the need for sone
consequence, which was typically suspension of the teaching

certificate for a year. He noted that many of the disparaging
personal disputes were in small towns. He said that it was very
rare to have a harnful action. He added that, although others

on the comm ssion were nenbers of the educator unions, he had
never wtnessed any excuses for a wunion nenber who had
m sbehaved. He stated that the conm ssion nenbers were very
concerned with the enforcenent of high standards of behavi or.

8:32:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if the commission investigated
school princi pal s.

MR FRY replied that the commission covered public school
teachers and admnistrators, as well as instructors in higher
educat i ons.

REPRESENTATI VE  REINBOLD relayed anecdotes of two recent
situations involving drugs and inappropriate personal behavior
wi th school personnel. She then asked who were the nonitors and
what were the preventative neasures taken. She expressed her
concern for a lack of evaluation.

MR FRY replied that nonitoring was handled by the school
district admnistration, and that illegal activity was handled
by | egal authorities.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how many principals or teachers
were fired annually.

MR. FRY replied that, as this was handled internally by school
districts, it would not be reported to the comm ssion. He

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2013



clarified that the comm ssion handl ed conplaints about rules of
ethics. He stated that the comm ssion did not supervise teacher
conduct in every aspect of their work.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how many ethics conplaints were
recei ved.

MR. FRY offered his belief that the executive director of the
comm ssion would review 50 conplaints per vyear, and would
determine that all the |local grievance procedures had been
handl ed. He said that there were about 20 final orders each
year, which all pertained to ethical rules.

8:36: 32 AM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the trend for teachers who

break contracts existed primarily on or off the road system in
Al aska.

MR. FRY replied that many Anchorage teachers break contracts,
al t hough he woul d not estimate to the actual percentages.

8:37:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMMOND read a definition for the causes for
suspensi on or revocation from the Professional Teachi ng
Practices Conm ssion annual report, which stated: "The

Comm ssioner or the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion
may revoke or suspend a certificate for the follow ng reasons:
i nconpetency, imorality, substantial non-conpliance wth the
laws, and a violation of ethical or professional standards."”
She said that inconpetency was defined as "the inability or
unintentional or intentional failure to perform the teacher's
customary teaching duties in a satisfactory nmanner." She
offered her belief that this could come into the conm ssion's
purvi ew.

8:38: 37 AM

MR. FRY said that he had never seen a conplaint related to non-
performance by a teacher. He apologized if he had m sst at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND expressed her concern that the House
Education Standing Commttee was not clear about the assessnent
of requirenents for the Professional Teaching Practices
Conmi ssi on.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 29, 2013



8:39:48 AM

MR MORSE clarified that although the comm ssion was housed
under EED, the executive director was appointed by the governor
and reported to the conm ssion. The executive director was
aware of the detailed requirenents. He said that AS 14.23.70-AS
14. 25. 100 established the powers of the comm ssion. He provided
exanples of wviolations that could be presented to the

comm ssion, which it would consider. He pointed out that the
code of ethics for teachers had been adopted by the comm ssion
even though it was not in statute. He suggested that the

executive director could better attest to the violations
addressed by the comm ssion.

8:42: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON suggested that an inconpetent teacher
would be identified and the issues resolved by the school
district admnistration, and thus not reach the level of the
PTPC.

MR. MORSE, drawing from his experience as a principal, added
that nore often an adm nistrator would have the teacher renoved
i nstead of bringing a charge to the PTPC.

8:44:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of
Eric Fry to the Professional Teaching Practices Commission for
consideration in joint session by the House and Senate. There
bei ng no objection, the confirmation was advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S rem nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnents to boards and commssions in no way reflect
i ndi vi dual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,
and that the nomnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egi slature for confirmation or rejection.

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

8:45: 24 AM

GORIA O NElILL, Appointee, University of Alaska Board of
Regents, reported that she was the President and Chief Executive

Oficer of the Cook Inlet Tribal Council (CTC). I n response
she said that she had been appointed to the board by the
governor in January and had served for one neeting. She

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 29, 2013



explained that, as a regent, she had been through the
orientation, spoken with the other nenbers of the board, and had
reviewed the 600 page packet which had been distributed for the
first board neeting. She pointed out that she had served on the
academc affairs commttee, which was addressing the "G ow ng
Teachers for Al aska" program She declared her need for due
di l i gence, and voiced her passion for this program She offered
her belief that the time had arrived for the University of
Al aska to review the nentoring and support prograns for "grow ng

rural teachers for Rural Alaska,” and to nake any necessary
changes. She voiced a need for a system of success for
st udent s.
8:49: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD stated the top issues as she understood
them which included the transfer of credits, the wait list for
the nursing program the cost of maintenance for the university,
and the need for teachers in Al aska. She asked for suggestions
for inprovenent to any or all of these issues.

M5. O NEILL explained that she would be an inpact nenber in any
role that had inportance. She noted that it was difficult to
change systens from the inside, and that working wth the
University of Al aska Board of Regents for positive inpact would
be an approach for system c change. She stressed that the issue
regarding the transfer of credits was "ridiculous,” as it was
practical and sensible. She stressed that this issue was a
priority of the president of UA and that the University of
Al aska Anchorage had nmade great strides for this transfer of
credits within the University of Alaska (UA) system She
addressed the difficulty of enrollnment in the UA nursing
program and explained that CITC had fornmed partnerships wth
organi zations to train nurses. She opined that it was necessary
to review what worked best for offering Al askans opportunities,

especially in the health <care industry. She declared a
necessity for the creation of public-private partnerships, as
"different pathways work for different people.™ She said that
she was still studying the university budget to gain a better

understanding for the issue of high cost, while ensuring the
mai nt enance of the university and the delivery of a quality
experience. She enphasized that the university needed to be
accountable to Alaskans and it was necessary to invest in the
devel opment of a workforce for the state.

8:54: 23 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the university would incorporate
t eacher education nethodology to include the assessnent
requi renents that had been adopted nationally for integration of
knowl edge. He requested her thoughts on the direction for this
program

M5. O NEILL acknow edged her lack of information for the teacher
training program She offered her belief that it would be
prudent for the board to review the relevance of each of the
assessnments, as it was inportant for pertinent |earning.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that the assessnents based on
common core have been negative as the instructional nethods have
focused on fact retention, and not the integration of know edge.
He expressed his desire that the teaching nethodol ogies would
nove toward the integration of know edge.

8:58:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND expressed her appreciation for the focus
on the "Growing Teachers for Al aska" program especially from
the Rural and Native communities. Noting the difficulty for
pl acenent of teachers in rural communities, she asked for a plan
of action.

M5. ONElILL stated her interest in teachers who were drawn to

Rural Al aska, regardless of cultural background. She opi ned
that passionate, inspired teachers would succeed in any
comunity. She pointed out that some teachers from a village
woul d have difficulty " goi ng home" after seei ng t he

opportunities in the larger communities and school districts.
She questioned the cost to the state for a teacher to locate to
a rural comunity for a few years, and then |eave. She offered
her belief that it was a high cost to the state and to the
chi | dren. She asked what it would take to change this system
She pointed out that education was changing rapidly, and that it
was no |onger solely in the classroom

9:03:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND noted that, as Ms. O Neill begins her
tenure on the board, school districts and UA would be | aying off
many staff nmenbers. She pointed to the criticism of UA for a

l ack of teaching candidates, which necessitated the hiring of
teachers from outside of Alaska. At the same tine, the State of
Al aska had been flat funding education for the past three years.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2013



She suggested that a collision of all of the issues was in the
future.

M5. O NEILL acknow edged that this could also be an opportunity
to "make the systembetter.”

9:04:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of
Goria ONeill to the University of Alaska Board of Regents for
consideration in joint session by the House and Senate. There
bei ng no objection, the confirmation was advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S rem nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnments to boards and comrissions in no way reflect
i ndi vi dual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,
and that the nomnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egi slature for confirmation or rejection.

9: 05: 31 AM

DALE ANDERSON, Appointee, University of Al aska Board of Regents,
directed attention to his qualifications, which included a broad
based exposure to a lot of Alaska in both the public and private

sectors. He declared that he was uniquely qualified for the
appointnment, and had served on the board for the past year
fulfilling the termof another regent.

9: 08: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD, directing attention to the budget for
the University of Al aska, expressed her concern "'cause there's
a lot of people fighting for that noney and there's |ots of need
t hroughout the state.” Noting the appointee's financial
background, she asked "to curb the appetite there [UA budget]."

9:09: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stressed the need for teacher training
nmet hodol ogy and courses to incorporate the integrated know edge
assessnents in lieu of the fact assessnents.

9:10:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of
Dal e Anderson to the University of Alaska Board of Regents for

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- March 29, 2013



consideration in joint session by the House and Senate. Ther e
bei ng no objection, the confirmation was advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S reni nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnments to boards and commssions in no way reflect
i ndi vidual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,
and that the nomnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egislature for confirmation or rejection.

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comr ssi on

9:11: 20 AM

MARTI N LASTER, Appoi nt ee, Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, reported that he was a retired K-12 superintendent,
the «current director of the Master Degree in Education
Educati onal Leadership program at University  of Al aska
Sout heast, and that he would be seated on the conmi ssion in the
hi gher education position.

9:12: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the papers and publications witten
by the appointee, and expressed his appreciation for the
expertise of the appointee.

9:12: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noved to advance the confirmation of
Martin Laster referred to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion for consideration in joint session by the House and
Senate for consideration. There being no objection, the
confirmation was advanced.

CHAI R GATTI S reni nded nenbers that signing the reports regarding
appointnments to boards and commssions in no way reflect
i ndi vi dual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the appointees,
and that the nomnations are nerely forwarded to the full
| egi sl ature for confirmation or rejection.

9:13:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMVOND asked if there would be another
opportunity to review the two appoi ntees who were not avail abl e.

CHAIR GATTIS replied that this would be pursued at another
nmeeti ng.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 29, 2013



9:14:52 AM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:14 a.m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -15- March 29, 2013



